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This is a two and one-half story building and is a classic example of 
Victorian style of architecture of the late 1870*s and 1880 f s. It is a white 
wooden structure with red trim around the high french windows, many of which 
still hold the original French hand-rolled glass panes. The Cupola is two 
stories with rounded dome roof with hand wrought iron railing and flag pole. 
Ceilings are 14 feet with 12-foot high doors of heavy oak and walnut wood. 
Building sits on a foundation of local, hand-hewn granite blocks. All light­ 
ing is electric and all early fixtures have been removed.

The building is 74 feet by 80 feet and was designed by J. R. Roberts. 
Total cost of the building was $31,000. Contract for construction was sold 
at public auction, July 3, 1880 to Charles Anton, Samuel Hopkins and James 
Cain. They assumed $23,000 of the original contract.

The plan of the building is clear, simple, and orderly. Entrances and 
windows are well-spaced.

The detailing is superb and well-designed to cast crisp shadows in the 
clear mountain air of the High Sierra. Although there is a "false front," 
for which structures in the 1880 West were famous, this one is solid and 
substantial and harmonizes well with the building as a whole. The east and 
west fronts have been treated in a simpler fashion, but still contain beauti­ 
ful detailing around the openings. Just one window frame on the south front 
contains 137 separate pieces of milled or molded wood.

The fenestration is carried from the wood base almost to the 13-foot 
ceiling, giving the building great scale and dignity. Although the second 
floor line is well marked on the exterior, the arched windows at the second 
floor and the permanent architraves over them tend to unify first and second 
floor windows and emphasize a 32-foot high treatment. The architect has 
accomplished a similar result at the main entrance, the crowning glory of 
which is a grand cupola or belfry.

The exterior contains some unusual examples of the art of wood graining. 
Perhaps the most astounding feature is the remarkable safe doors which are 
installed in three locations. They still contain the original gold leaf 
lettering indicating they were cast in St. Louis in 1880 when they must have 
been floated down the Mississippi, carried around the Horn by sailing ship to 
San Francisco, and hauled over the Sierra Nevada by mule. The Superior 
Courtroom is a sight to behold.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This is the second oldest operation of a courthouse in the State of 
California. It is still serving its original purpose. In the year of 1861, 
Aurora was serving as the county seat of Mono County. In that year, Presi­ 
dent Lincoln appointed Governor Nye as the first Governor of the Territory 
of Nevada. He in turn called for a special meeting of the Legislature and 
named Esmiralda County as part of that district. This started the argument 
and a new survey of the state line was called for and much to the embarras- 
ment of the Mono County officials, Aurora was found to be located three mileu 
inside the Nevada border.

Mono County officials hauled the county records to Kingsleys Inn in 
the new town of Bridgeport and this building served as a courthouse until 
the present one was built and opened in 1880. It is significant that this 
Courthouse has been serving a county that had its first County Seat not only 
in another county but also in another State. As far as is known, this is thu 
only county in the United States with that distinction.

The Courthouse is a stately architectural statement. This grand old 
building reflects the opulence of the Bodie gold mines and the appreciation 
of a culture for which the early mining pioneers are famous.

According to Architectural historian, David Gebhard, the Mono County 
Courthouse is one of the rare remaining examples of a California Italianate 
Courthouse. This beautifully kept 1880 wood building has all of the ingre­ 
dients of the Italianate style: bracketed and pedimented canopies over 
windows, engaged columns and quoining at the corners, and a delightful 
miniature cupola with round headed windows and a curved mansard roof 
broken by small circular windows." (Page 418, A Guide to Architecture in 
San Francisco and Northern California)
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